
MINUTES 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
JANUARY 30, 2013 
 
Mayor Jeff Thompson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Council members present were 
Kay McDaniel, Donavan Mayer, and Gene Beavers. Jean Soine was absent. Others present 
were Renee Eckerly, City Administrator; Ron Mergen, Public Works Director; Ashley Alsum, 
Cable Coordinator, Chuck DeWolf, Bolton & Menk, Inc.; Ellarry Prentice, Press; and Dennis 
Zimmerman.  
 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY RE-SCOPING PROJECT 
 
The following documents were reviewed: 

• Email from Magney Construction 
• Letter from Magney Construction 
• Application For Payment No. 1 in the amount of $149,625.00 
• Application For Payment No. 2 in the amount of $397,385.95 
• Application For Payment No. 3 in the amount of $451,676.55 

 
The time line for the project was handed out and reviewed: 

• April 2012 - MPCA request for minor modification 
• Bid opening – July 2012 
• August 2012 – Council awarded bid 
• Late September 2012 – MPCA wanted full application  
• Permit submitted 
• Early October 2012 – Preconstruction meeting 
• Late October 2012 – MPCA wanted permit modification 

 
Eckerly gave a brief history on the project. Eckerly had recently received a call from Magney 
Construction that they would be leaving the construction site due to non-payment on three 
outstanding pay requests.  Eckerly called DeWolf on this.  MPCA didn’t have all documents to 
release any funds and the PFA was waiting for the project to be certified by MPCA. The project 
was certified today. Eckerly suggested that Council approve the amortization schedule, 
authorize the Mayor to sign the documents, and approve Application For Payment No. 1. 
Eckerly has explained the payment process to Magney and Magney would be happy with any 
money.  Eckerly further explained that there may be penalties and interest charged by Magney 
for non-payments. Eckerly explained the PFA funding process.  
 
DeWolf explained the following: 

• Funding for the project is through a $2.5 million dollar MPCA grant with the remaining 
funds from a PFA low interest 20 year loan 

• The preliminary work on the project started a number of years ago 
• In February of 2012 the Council authorized to proceed with the re-scope 
• The grant dollars are being used to re-scope the wastewater facility 
• Plans were submitted to MPCA in March of 2012 
• In April of 2012 MPCA requested minor modifications 
• Bids were opened the end of July 2012 



• The bid was awarded in August of 2012 
• In late September of 2012 MPCA decided it was not minor modifications, but rather 

MPCA wanted a new permit 
• The permit was completed in early October of 2012 
• MPCA needed 45 days to review  
• Preconstruction meeting was held in October of 2012 
• Construction started in October of 2012 
• MPCA revised the permit in late October of 2012 
• Revisions were made and re-submitted to MPCA in early November of 2012 
• Construction starting before funding is finalized is not uncommon and is usually not an 

issue 
• Bolton & Menk have done a number of these types of projects 
• This was an extremely drug out process by MPCA 
• A normal MPCA process takes a quarter of this time 
• The pay requests were a miscommunication and miss coordination with the contractor 

 
Thompson asked why there were three pay requests submitted to Bolton & Menk, but the 
Council is only seeing them now. DeWolf stated that he was working with the contractor on this 
and Bolton & Menk was waiting for PFA funding. There was a misunderstanding with the 
contractor and miscommunication within the process. Thompson agreed, but is concerned with 
the City’s relationship with the contractor, relationships with future contractors, and the City’s 
bond rating.  
DeWolf stated that there was some miscommunication and misunderstandings.  
 
Eckerly interjected that she was unaware of what was going on until the contractor called when 
they were going to leave the site.  
 
It was asked that when MPCA requested a new permit, at that point, wouldn’t the funding be 
dead until the new permit was approved. DeWolf stated no, that the spray irrigation permit was 
renewed.  
 
It was stated that there was not PFA funding and the grant monies would be at least a 30 day 
turn around. Eckerly stated that the funding has now been secured.  The City just can’t be 
reimbursed until the project is certified. Eckerly confirmed that the project was certified today.  
 
It was stated that if there had been better communication the Council would not be sitting here 
today. It was asked how the project was able to start without approved funding. It was asked 
why the pay applications were never presented to the Council for consideration. If the pay 
requests would have been submitted; the Council could have addressed the funding of the 
project and payments to the Contractor. It was stated that in August of 2012 the Council 
approved the project contingent upon the grant approval and PFA funding.  It was asked who 
is responsible for this. DeWolf stated that Bolton & Menk take the responsibility for getting the 
City through the process. Eckerly reported that she and Mergen asked DeWolf about bills that 
may have needed to be paid by the end of year and DeWolf replied that there were no bills, but 
there are being held until funding was received and the contractor was okay with this.  
 
DeWolf further stated that there was a disconnect with the contractor and that Bolton & Menk 
should have responded to the contractor’s letter.  



The project deadline was questioned.  Eckerly stated that the City can extend the deadline and 
the City has until 2016 to complete the project.  
 
Further issues were highlighted: 

• The communication disconnect 
• Starting the project without securing funding 
• No pay requests were ever submitted to the Council until now 
• The City’s risk exposure 
• City’s bond rating 
• 2012 audit  

 
It was expressed that the contractor can charge a penalty on late payments; plus interest. The 
City should not pay these penalties. DeWolf said no, he would work with the contractor on this.  

 
The transferring of funds to cover the expenses and the amortization schedule was discussed.  
 
DeWolf apologized as this was not a normal process. It was stated that things like this shakes 
the City’s and Council’s confidence in Bolton & Menk, Inc. Everyone needs to take a sense of 
responsibility in this matter. DeWolf took responsibility and expressed that he did not want to 
lose the City or Councils trust.  

 
Motion was made by Mayer to approve Application For Payment No. 1 in the 
amount of $149,625.00; payable to Magney Construction. Inc. Seconded by 
McDaniel and unanimously carried.  

 
The 2nd and 3rd Applications will be presented at the February 12, 2013 City Council meeting 
for consideration.  
 

Motion was made by McDaniel to approve the amortization schedule and 
authorize the mayor to sign the documents.  Seconded by Mayer and 
unanimously carried.  

 
Mergen asked if he could add an item regarding Hydro Engineering and the replacement of the 
center pivots. Mergen would like to trade in the pivots for a credit in the amount of $24,218.00 
and purchase 20 gear boxes in the amount of $8,253.60 from Hydro Engineering. 
 

Motion was made by Beavers to trade in the pivots for a credit in the amount of 
$24,218.00 and purchase 20 gear boxes in the amount of $8,253.60 from Hydro 
Engineering. Seconded by Mayer and unanimously carried.  

 
 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:58 pm.  


